
 

 
Contact: Samantha Schanzer, Cynghorydd Craffu 
Tel: 01633 656656 
E-mail: Scrutiny@newport.gov.uk 
Date of Issue: Dydd Gwener, 23 Medi 2022 
  

 
This document is available in welsh / Mae’s ffurflen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

 

Agenda 
Pwyllgor Rheoli Trosolwg a Chraffu 
 
Date: Dydd Gwener, 30 Medi 2022 
 
Time: 10.00 am 
 
Venue: Hybrid meeting 
 
To: Councillors P Hourahine (Cadeirydd), M Al-Nuaimi, M Evans, L James, C Baker-

Westhead, P Bright, B Davies and G Horton 
 
 
 
Item  Wards Affected 

  
1   Ymddiheuriadau   

 
 

 
2   Datganiadau o ddiddordeb   

 
 

 
3   Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Diwethaf   

Minutes to follow. 
 

 

 
4   Themâu Llesiant Cynllun Corfforaethol Drafft 2022-27  (Tudalennau 3 

- 18) 
 

 

 
5   Adroddiad Blynyddol Diogelu Corfforaethol 2021-22  (Tudalennau 19 - 

60) 
 

 

 
6   Casgliad Adroddiadau Pwyllgorau   

Following the completion of the Committee reports, the Committee will 
be asked to formalise its conclusions, recommendations and 
comments on previous items for actioning.  
  
 

 

 
7   Adroddiad Cynghorydd Craffu  (Tudalennau 61 - 72) 

a)    Actions Arising (Appendix 1) 

b)    Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 2) 

  
 

 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau



 

 

 



Scrutiny Report 
Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  September 2022 
 
Subject Draft Corporate Plan 2022-27 Well-being Objectives and 

Priorities  
 
Author  Overview and Scrutiny Officer  
 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Area / Role / Subject 
 

Rhys Cornwall Director of Transformation and Corporate 
Sally Anne Jenkins Director of Social Services 
Paul Jones Director of Environment and Sustainability 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 
 

 
 
2 Context 
 

Background  
 

2.1 The Corporate Plan 2022-27 forms part of the Council’s Policy Framework. As such its direction 
needs to be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee prior to being 
finalised, and subsequently approved and adopted by full Council. 

 
2.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires all public bodies to carry out 

sustainable development and demonstrate how they will improve the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales.  To maximise its contribution, Newport Council is 
required to set and publish its Well-being Objectives and support the seven Well-being Goals of 
the Act.  The seven Well-being Goals are: 

 
i. A Prosperous Wales 

1 Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked:

1.1 To consider the Draft Well-being Objectives and strategic priorities of the Council to 
support the Well-being of Future Generations seven Well-being Goals (Appendix 1 
and presentation).

1.2 To provide comment and recommendations on the draft Corporate Plan themes 
which will form the Corporate Plan for 2022-27. 

Tudalen 3

Eitem Agenda 4

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-10/well-being-future-generations-wales-act-2015-the-essentials-2021.pdf


ii. A Resilient Wales 
iii. A Healthier Wales 
iv. A more equal Wales 
v. A Wales of cohesive communities 
vi. A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language 
vii. A globally responsible Wales 

 
Additionally the Act requires the Council to demonstrate how and why the Council has decided its 
Well-being Objectives will have the widest impact will improve the well-being of Newport through 
the 5 ways of working principles.  The definition of these principles is outlined in Section B of this 
report.   

 
2.3 The Council also has duties to meet through legislation and regulation passed by Welsh 

Government, UK Government and regulatory bodies.  Newport Council also undertakes additional 
non-statutory duties which it deems important to meet the demands of its residents, businesses 
and other stakeholders in Newport. 

 
2.4 To meet these requirements, the Council produces a five year Corporate Plan which outlines the 

Council’s Well-being Objectives and strategic priorities that will support the Council’s contribution 
towards the Well-being Goals and improving the well-being of Newport and Wales. 

 
 The Corporate Plan will also include information on how progress and outcomes will be monitored 

and reported through the Council’s democratic process.  A final version will be presented to Full 
Council for its formal approval and prior to its publication.   

 
2.5 The final Annual Report on the previous Corporate Plan will also be received by Scrutiny 

Committee at its next meeting. 
 
2.6 The final version of the Corporate Plan will include additional information on the strategic 

programmes and projects that will support the achievement of the Well-being Objectives.  The Plan 
will also include the Key Performance Measures for each objective that will be used to monitor and 
demonstrate the Council’s progress against the Corporate Plan.   

 
2.7 Detailed plans and programmes and a full set of performance measures will be included in the 

supporting Service Plans and these are also subject to Performance Scrutiny annually.  
 
 
3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 The development of the Corporate plan allows us to build on the successes and learn from the 

challenges of the previous five years, including our response to the Covid pandemic. 
 
To achieve this, we have developed four draft well-being objectives that will prioritise our focus 
over the next five years and will support our longer-term vision for Newport over the next 20 years: 
 
➢ Newport is a thriving and growing city that offers excellent education and aspires to 

provide opportunities for all. 
 

➢ A city that seeks to protect and enhance our environment whilst reducing our carbon 
footprint and preparing for a sustainable and digital future. 

 
➢ Newport is a supportive city where communities and care are at the heart of what we do. 

 
➢ Newport City Council is an inclusive organisation that places social value, fairness and 

sustainability at its core. 

 

Tudalen 4



3.2 Attached at Appendix 1 are the draft Corporate Plan themes for 2022-27 and the detail of these 
will be presented to the Committee at the meeting.  

4. Suggested Areas of Focus 
 

 
  
 
Section B – Supporting Information  
 
5 Well-being of Future Generation (Wales) Act ‘Sustainability Development 

Principles’  
 

Long Term 
 

Collaboration 
 

 
Involvement  

 
Integration 

 

 
Prevention 

The importance of 
balancing short-term 
needs with the need to 
safeguard the long term 
needs 
 

Acting in 
collaboration with 
any other person (or 
different parts of the 
body itself) that 
could help the body 
to meet its well-
being objectives. 

The importance of 
involving people with an 
interest in achieving the 
well-being goals, and 
ensuring that those 
people reflect the 
diversity of the area 
which the body serves. 

Considering how the 
public body’s well-being 
objectives may impact 
upon each of the well-
being goals, on their 
other objectives, or on 
the objectives of other 
public bodies. 

How acting to prevent 
problems occurring or 
getting worse may help 
public bodies meet their 
objectives. 

 
 
6. Impact Assessment 
 

A final equalities impact assessment will be produced to support the full Corporate Plan.   
 
7. Background Papers 

 
The Essentials – Well-being of Future Generation Act (Wales)  

 
Report Completed: September 2022 

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:

• Consider and assess the extent which the Corporate Plan Well-being Objectives and 
draft Strategic Priorities will:

o Support the 7 Well-being Goals and sustainable development principle of the Well-
being Act. 
Support the development of a Corporate Plan which delivers on key priorities for the 
citizens of Newport  

• Conclusions:

o What was the overall conclusion on the information contained within the report?
o Is the Committee satisfied that the draft themes will support the final Corporate Plan
o Do the Committee wish to make any Comments / Recommendations to the Cabinet?

Tudalen 5

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn



 

 

DRAFT Corporate 
Plan Themes 
2022-27

Tudalen 7



 

 

INTRODUCTION 

The development of the Corporate Plan allows us to build on the successes and learn from the challenges of 
the previous five years, including our response to the Covid pandemic.  

To achieve this goal, we have four draft well-being objectives that will prioritise our focus over the next five 
years and will support our longer-term vision for Newport: 

1. Newport is a thriving and growing city that offers excellent education and aspires to provide 
opportunities for all. 

2. A city that seeks to protect and enhance our environment whilst reducing our carbon footprint 
and preparing for a sustainable and digital future. 

3. Newport is a supportive city where communities and care are at the heart of what we do. 
4. Newport City Council is an inclusive organisation that places social value, fairness and 

sustainability at its core. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Tudalen 8



 

 

Draft Well-being Objective 1 – Economy, Education and Skills 

Newport is a thriving and growing city that offers excellent education and aspires to 
provide opportunities for all. 

Wales’ Well-being Goals Supported 

     
A prosperous 

Wales 
A more equal 

Wales 
A Wales of 
cohesive 

communities 

A Wales of vibrant 
vulture & thriving 
Welsh Language 

A globally 
responsible Wales 

 

Why did we choose this objective? 

For the last two years Newport City Council has been supporting the recovery of the city’s economy following the Covid 
pandemic and responding to wider global impacts on businesses.  Newport is on the cusp of repositioning itself as an 
economic powerhouse in south east Wales. Over the next 20 years, we will support initiatives to attract major investment 
into the city, kickstart and nurture homegrown entrepreneurs, celebrate our heritage and culture, and revitalise the city 
centre.   

As the fastest growing city in Wales, the council will ensure Newport’s growth remains sustainable for its communities. 
Working collaboratively with residents and developers we will ensure Newport’s city centre and wider communities are 
inclusive places for families, visitors, and businesses to access the services they need, build connections with each 
other, and participate in shaping the environment around them.   

To support our economic growth, we must also provide opportunities for all our citizens to develop the skills and routes 
into employment that tackle inequality whilst also providing our businesses with a skilled and effective workforce.  Over 
the next five years, Newport will develop an education system that maximises the potential of our young learners 
providing the life skills they need to enter the labour market and support their communities.  We will also continue to 
support people to re-enter the job market and access long-term employment through training, skills development, and 
confidence building.   

Some ways that we will achieve this… 

1 Newport will have a robust economic strategy and replacement Local Development Plan to support 
sustainable economic growth and strong placemaking across Newport’s communities. 

2 Lead and collaborate to attract major investment into the city and support our local entrepreneurs to 
thrive and bring prosperity to Newport’s communities. 

3 Re-vitalise its city centre and wider communities to benefit families, businesses, and visitors. 
4 Become a destination that celebrates cultural diversity, heritage and delivers elite sporting events. 
5 Develop education facilities that support future generations to achieve their potential and positively 

contribute to their communities. 
6 Work towards eliminating education inequality faced by young learners that are from disadvantaged, 

Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic backgrounds, low-income households, and/or have additional 
learning needs.   

7 Increase the number of Welsh speakers in Newport by improving access to Welsh education, 
supporting businesses, and promoting the Welsh language. 

8 Become a living wage city helping people out of poverty and provide opportunities to retrain, learn new 
skills and find long-term work. 

 

  

Tudalen 9



 

 

Draft Well-being Objective 2 – Newport’s Environment and Infrastructure 

A city that seeks to protect and enhance our environment whilst reducing our carbon 
footprint and preparing for a sustainable and digital future. 

Supports: 

      
A Prosperous 

Wales 
A Resilient 

Wales 
A more Equal 

Wales 
A Wales of 
Cohesive 

Communities 
A Healthier 

Wales 
A Globally 

Responsible 
Wales 

 

Why did we choose this objective? 

Climate change is the defining issue of our generation, and we must act now to protect our planet, our city, and our 
communities.  It is also important for the council, our partners, and our communities to do everything we can to protect 
and enhance the environment and biodiversity around us such as our parks, open spaces, woodlands, and our urban 
areas across the city.   

There is a requirement for the council to become net zero carbon neutral by 2030 and for the city to be net zero carbon 
neutral by 2050. This objective will focus on how we will deliver our Organisational Climate Change Plan and our Local 
Area Energy Plan. We will be working towards these aims and ensuring placemaking is integrated in new and existing 
buildings, homes, and services for the long term.  Over the next five years, alongside our Organisational Climate Change 
Plan, we will continue our commitment to meet Welsh Government’s target of zero waste by 2050. This will mean 
providing more support and opportunities for households and businesses to recycle and use more sustainable products.   

The infrastructure and transport system of the city is vital to enable people and our communities to connect with each 
other and more widely across Wales, UK and globally. Having accessible transport and infrastructure to travel easily, 
into and out of the city, is vital for the economy, well-being, and health of our communities. We also need to move away 
from the reliance on cars and provide alternatives for people to use. Infrastructure is not just about how we travel, but 
about our digital networks and how we connect with businesses, families, and public services. It is important for our 
communities to have easily accessible digital services and support. This also includes ensuring our most vulnerable and 
low-income households have access to digital technology to engage and support each other.   

Some ways that we will achieve this 

1 Become a net zero carbon council and city through the delivery of the Council’s Organisational Climate 
Change Plan and Local Area Energy Plan. 

2 Collaborate and involve developers, communities, and businesses to create buildings for working and 
living in that are sustainable, affordable and enhance the environment. 

3 Continue our progress as a world-leader for recycling contributing towards Wales’s net zero waste 
goal. 

4 To protect and enhance the biodiversity and environment of Newport’s urban and rural communities, 
improving well-being and health.     

5 Transform Newport’s highways and transport system to improve air quality and safety. Promote active 
travel across the city and south east Wales region. 

6 Collaborate and support investment into a digital infrastructure which will provide equitable access for 
residents and businesses across Newport. 

7 Support and champion reputable businesses that comply with environmental and regulatory 
requirements and take action against organisations that do not. 

 

  

Tudalen 10



 

 

 

Draft Well-being Objective 3 – Preventative and Equitable Community and Social Care 

Newport is a supportive city where communities and care are at the heart of what we do. 

Wales’ Well-being Goals Supported: 

    

A Healthier 
Wales 

A Wales of 
Cohesive 

Communities 

A Wales of 
thriving Culture & 

Thriving Welsh 
Language 

A more Equal 
Wales 

 

Why did we choose this objective? 

Newport has diverse and rich cultural communities which come together, support each other to improve the areas they 
live in, and safeguard our most vulnerable citizens. Over the next five years we are aiming to have a more co-operative 
approach with service users, families, carers, health, landlords, community, and social care sectors to work together to 
tackle inequality. This will ensure communities remain safe places and contribute towards making Newport a great place 
to live, work and enjoy. 

We will also seek to have a sustainable social care sector, one that is able to ensure people including carers can get 
early intervention and access to the services they need.  We also want to ensure people can be supported to live 
independent lives that are appropriate to their needs. This means supporting more providers that are focused on the 
well-being of their residents, service users, carers, and staff, not on profit.   

 

Some ways that we will achieve this 

1 Create sustainable adult, children’s and prevention services through a co-production model with 
providers, service users, and carers to meet our statutory duties, future demands, and eliminate profit 
from children’s social care. 

2 Safeguarding our children, young people, vulnerable adults and families so that future generations can 
maximise their potential and have control over their lives.   

3 We will support individuals and carers to maintain their independence and support them when they 
need help by providing equitable access to early intervention and prevention support. 

4 Strengthening our investment in early intervention and prevention with a range of youth, play and 
community based activities supporting families and individuals to live positive and healthy lives 

5 Reduce the number of people that are and/or at risk of becoming homeless through the provision of a 
holistic housing and preventative multi-agency support services. 

6 Newport will be a City of Sanctuary which supports Asylum Seekers, refugees and our global 
community to settle and become part of our community. 

7 Promote positive community inclusion and culture by engaging with key stakeholders and communities 
to address issues of anti-social behaviour and crime.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 11



 

 

 

Draft Well-being Objective 4 – An Inclusive, Fair and Sustainable Council 

Newport City Council is an inclusive organisation that places social value, fairness and 
sustainability at its core. 

Wales Well-being Goals Supported 

    
A more Equal 

Wales 
A Wales of 
Cohesive 

Communities 

A Wales of Vibrant 
Culture & Thriving 
Welsh Language 

A Globally 
Responsible Wales 

 

Why did we choose this objective? 

The long-term well-being and sustainability of Newport City Council is essential if we are to deliver services to 
communities and businesses across Newport.  The sustainability of the council is about ensuring that our finances 
provide value for money to the citizens of Newport and that we invest in opportunities that support socio-economic 
improvements.  We must also ensure our assets (e.g. buildings, fleet and procurement) are suitable for future 
generations to use and support the council’s commitment to be net zero carbon by 2030.   

Residents will be at the centre of our aspirations to improve our service delivery. This means residents can access our 
services however they want, whether face to face or online. We also want communities and groups to be able improve 
the places where they live through volunteering, taking on and using council buildings or deciding how funding is awarded 
to projects across the city. 

We also want Newport City Council to be an inclusive organisation which represents the people of Newport. The council 
must be an employer of choice that offers employees equitable opportunity to work and deliver high quality services for 
the people of Newport.  The council must also be involved in decisions made at a regional and national levels to ensure 
we can maximise the opportunities for Newport and benefit from major investment. 

Some ways that we will achieve this 

1 Become an inclusive organisation that represents the citizens of Newport, providing equitable 
opportunity for people to succeed and places the citizen at the centre of decision making. 

2 Transform our neighbourhood and community services to enable communities to make best use of 
land and property through community asset transfer. 

3 Deliver our organisational Climate Change Plan to become a net zero organisation by 2030. 
4 Provide fair access to the council’s in-person and digital services, including digital skills training and 

support. 
5 Promote and improve the way in which residents and businesses can interact with the council’s 

democratic process and decision making. 
6 Rationalise, protect, and enhance our buildings and assets enabling co-productive working 

environments with our strategic partners, public sector bodies and other organisations. 
7 Generate opportunities to build wealth across Newport’s communities through progressive 

procurement of goods and services and other initiatives such as participatory budgeting 

Tudalen 12



 

 

Wales’s National Well-being Goals - DRAFT  

The delivery of our well-being Objectives supports Wales’ Well-being of Future Generations Act (the Well-
being Act) which requires all public bodies in Wales to think about the long-term impact of our decisions and 
to work with our communities, people, and each other to prevent persistent problems such as poverty, health 
inequalities and climate change.   

The Well-being Act has put in place seven well-being goals that all public bodies, including Newport City 
Council must work towards in this Corporate Plan: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In developing our objectives we considered these to have the widest impact and generate the best 
opportunities for Newport to become an exciting place to live.  Each objective in this Plan will outline why this 
is a priority for Newport City Council and the strategic priorities that will contribute towards the achievement 
of the objective.  Below we have outlined how our vision and objectives will contribute towards Wales’ Well-
being Goals: 

Long Term 
 

The last five years have demonstrated how quickly the world is changing and the need to respond to the short 
term needs of our communities and meet the longer term challenges in Newport, Wales and globally.  It will 
be important to ensure the Council is in a position now and in future to deliver sustainable services to the 
residents and businesses of Newport.   
This Corporate Plan will look to deliver positive changes that will create a vibrant and resilient economy and 
creating places for communities to feel safe, enjoy and access the services they need.  This also includes 
working towards breaking down the structural inequalities faced by disadvantaged and vulnerable groups in 
Newport through providing equitable access to services, education, training and jobs now and over the next 
20 years.   
We are committed to becoming net carbon neutral by 2030 and to enhance the unique bio-diversity that our 
future generations can enjoy.  It is important that we start making these changes over the next 5 years and 
enable Newport’s communities and partners to reduce their carbon emissions and adapt to the impacts of 
climate change.  This Plan will also take opportunities to start changing the way which we travel across 
Newport and the region ensuring people and businesses are able to connect and contribute towards a resilient 
and vibrant economy.  
It will be essential to address the short term impacts of the Covid pandemic, poverty and cost of living across 
our communities.  This means ensuring people have access to early intervention and prevention services and 
ensuring that that they have control over their lives and can contribute towards their communities. 
 

Collaboration 
 

We recognise that we cannot achieve many of our objectives and priorities alone and that we will need to work 
collaboratively locally, regionally and nationally to make these changes a reality.  Each objective will be 
overseen by the Council’s Cabinet and Executive Board ensuring that we will collaborate together to provide 
best value and maximise the opportunities across the Council.   
This means using our existing networks such as the BID Newport, schools, Public Services Board, Cardiff 
Capital Region, Regional Partnership Board and Welsh Government as well as developing new networks and 
approaches across a variety of sectors and organisations. Many of the priorities, programmes and projects in 
the Plan are building on what the Council has set out in its strategies and plans as well as the priorities set at 
national and regional levels in Wales.   
As we progress in the delivery of this Plan we will be working across all sectors whether this is private, public 
sector, not for profit and voluntary groups to share ideas, find innovative and sustainable solutions to tackle 
the many issues faced by the Council, communities and businesses.  
 

 
 

The achievement of our objectives, programmes and projects will be delivered with the service user and citizen 
at the centre of decisions.  This means involving those impacted throughout the process to help us shape the 
way services are delivered and the way our communities can contribute creating exciting places to live, work 
and enjoy. 
The development and delivery of this Plan will use a variety of methods and opportunities for people to become 
involved in Council activities whether this is taking part in consultations, contributing towards the democratic 
process, or providing your feedback on the way we have delivered our services. 

A prosperous Wales A Wales of cohesive communities 
A resilient Wales A Wales vibrant culture and thriving 

Welsh Language 
A healthier Wales A globally responsible Wales 
A more equal Wales  

Tudalen 13

https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/


 

 

Involvement 
 

It is important to Newport Council that we will ensure that views can be provided equitably and that the voices 
of everyone can be heard.  Delivery of the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan, and Participation Strategy are 
already enabling people from disadvantaged and protected characteristic groups to participate in the decisions 
that we make.  Building on this positive approach, we will build on this work becoming an inclusive organisation 
which represents citizens of Newport.  We have outlined in the Plan the Council’s principles in involving and 
delivering the Well-being objectives. 
 

 
Integration 

 

The development of the Corporate Plan has considered how each of the objectives and priorities will contribute 
towards Wales’ Well-being Goals.  The Plan outlines each Goal which they will be supporting over the next 5 
years.  As we progress with the delivery of the Corporate Plan we will be working with our local and regional 
partners to help support the achievement of ours and their vision and objectives.  For example, Newport 
Council will be working with Cardiff Capital Region, Gwent Public Services Board, Regional Partnership Board 
and the individual organisations to ensure there is synergy in our aims for Newport and to ensure Newport 
maximises the opportunities offered through integrated approaches that will benefit Newport’s communities.   
In the development of this Plan we have integrated the priorities of our strategic plans, service area priorities 
and the priorities of the Council’s administration.  As we deliver against our Well-being Objectives and 
priorities, the Corporate Plan will evolve, considering the ongoing external and internal changes of the 
organisation and the city.  As an organisation we regularly review and challenge ourselves on our objectives, 
priorities and Plans to ensure they reflect the priorities of communities and the Council.   
This will also mean considering and integrating the Well-being Act’s sustainable principle and of 5 ways of 
working, Equality Impact Assessment including Socio-economic duty, and Marmot principles in the decisions 
we make.  
 

 
 

Prevention 
 

Each of the objectives have considered the actions that we will need to take now to prevent problems from 
taking place or getting worse across our communities and Council services in the long-term.  The Corporate 
Plan provides many opportunities to tackle the increasing demand faced by our services and getting to the 
root causes of these pressures.  The last 3 years has seen the impact which Covid, subsequent restrictions 
and cost of living have had on many communities in Newport.  We are fully aware of the challenges faced by 
our economy, social care system, education and communities and have already taken steps to prevent the 
immediate impacts.  This plan builds on the work delivered during this period and will be working 
collaboratively to provide prevent these areas from getting worse and improving the long term outcomes in 
health, socio-economic position and life expectancy in Newport. 
There is significant evidence that the changing climate is already having an impact on our communities, bio-
diversity and environment in Newport.  We will be working across all sectors to prevent further impacts on our 
ecosystem ensuring we find different ways to reduce our carbon emissions but also to enhance and protect 
our environment.  This will not only provide opportunities for long term employment and economic benefits but 
will also contribute towards improving the health and well-being of citizens in Newport.     
Through involvement and collaboration with our partners, communities and businesses we will be designing 
and delivering early intervention and prevention services for people to take control of their lives and improve 
their outcomes but also as necessary for the Council to provide the additional help when they need it.    
 

 

  

Tudalen 14



 

 

Delivering the Corporate Plan 
The delivery of the Corporate Plan cannot be achieved by Newport City Council alone. For each objective, 
strategic priority, and project, we will do our part alongside our strategic partners, other public bodies, 
charities, not for profit organisations and the private sector. But we will also need you, the people of Newport, 
communities, groups, and businesses to help us make these become a reality. We need you to tell us what 
is important to you and where we can do better make Newport a great place to live, work and enjoy.   

Further information on how you can contribute can be found on ‘How you can get involved’. 

Principles of Delivering the Corporate Plan 

Over the next five years we will ensure that the decisions we make involve the people, communities and 
groups that use our services and live in our city.  To achieve this, we have outlined a set of principles which 
are aligned to our statutory duties of fairness and equality (including socio-economic duty, sustainability 
principles, five ways of working, Marmot and Fairness Commission principles).  These principles are: 

Fair and inclusive – Ensuring everyone has the same opportunities. People feel like they belong and are 
included in decisions and services delivered by the council. 

Empowering each other – We will collaborate and enable communities, groups and partners to thrive, 
providing them with the tools they need to improve Newport.  

A listening council – The views of communities, service users and partners will be used to understand the 
priorities of the citizen, improve the services we deliver and to shape the places you live in for future 
generations. 

Newport’s values – Everyone who works and represents Newport City Council will put the citizen first, 
focusing on our core organisation values, expected behaviours, accountability and ability to innovate. 

Finance - Revenue and Capital. 

The Corporate Plan will be delivered alongside the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP).  The 
MTFP sets out how much funding the Council may have available to it and the needs of the services to be 
funded.  

The day to day costs of the Council is delivered through 
the Council’s revenue budget.  This is funded from the 
Welsh Government Revenue Support, Council Tax and 
Business Rates.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 15



 

 

The budget is allocated across the Council’s service 
areas including schools to ensure that we deliver our 
statutory duties and ensure best value is provided to 
residents and businesses across Newport.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

To deliver and maintain the City’s new facilities, major 
repairs and maintenance, we have a Capital account.  The 
Council’s five year Capital Programme sets out how the 
Council will deliver the major projects and programmes 
throughout the delivery of this Corporate Plan.   

 

 

 

 

 

Governance and Structure 

The council’s Cabinet will lead and have oversight 
over the delivery of the Corporate Plan including key 
organisational strategies, transformation plan and 
service plans.   

The council’s scrutiny and regulatory committees will 
review and monitor the progress of delivery against 
the council’s Corporate Plan, strategies, and 
statutory services. 

The council’s senior team led by the Chief Executive 
will oversee the strategic delivery of the council’s 
Corporate Plan, Transformation Plan, and service 
area delivery.   

The Heads of Service will be responsible for the operational delivery of their services and delivering the 
Corporate Plan and transformation programme. 

  

Tudalen 16



 

 

Monitoring and Reporting against the Corporate Plan 

To ensure that we are progressing against our objectives in the Corporate Plan, we will be undertaking regular 
monitoring and reporting which is supported through the Council’s Planning, Performance and Risk 
management Framework.  This will be embedded throughout all levels of the organisation to ensure that we 
promote and champion where we are doing well and take action where we need to improve.  Some of our 
monitoring and reporting includes. 

Annual Corporate Well-
being & Self-Assessment 

Report 

Every year we will publish our Annual Corporate Well-being & Self-
Assessment Report.  This report provides an overview of the Council’s 
progress against the Corporate Plan Objectives, our performance and the 
improvements that we are going to make in future years. 
 
We will also conduct an independent peer review.  This will provide 
assurance on the effectiveness and robustness of our governance and 
performance arrangements in place to deliver our Well-being Objectives 
and the council services.   

Transformation Plan 
The Transformation Plan and Reporting will oversee the delivery of our key 
programmes and projects set in this Corporate Plan that will change how 
we deliver our services and improve the communities of Newport. 
 

Service Plans 

The Council’s 11 service areas will have a service plan which will outline 
how they will contribute and deliver the Corporate Plan, and improve the 
services they provide.  Copies of the Service Plans 2022-24 can be 
accessed here. 
 
Each service area will provide six monthly (Mid-Year and End of Year) 
updates on the progress of their service plans to the Council’s performance 
scrutiny committees.   

Strategy and Statutory 
Monitoring and Reporting 

The Council has several strategic plans and statutory requirements which 
it reports annually.  Some of these include Strategic Equality Plan, Welsh 
Language Strategy, Climate Change Plan, Welsh Education Strategic 
Plan, Digital Strategy. 
 
The performance against these strategies and statutory requirements are 
reported to the Council’s scrutiny, regulatory and cabinet meetings through 
our democratic process.  

Staff Performance 
Management 

The Council’s staff undertake regular staff performance and wellbeing 
meetings in the form of Check-ins.  Checking-in with our staff on their 
performance and health and wellbeing enables our staff to contribute 
effectively towards the achievement of this Plan and to ensure we provide 
the best possible services to our residents, businesses and visitors in 
Newport.    

  

People Plan  

Delivery of our 5-year Corporate Plan relies on our workforce’s ability to achieve the aspirations set within.  
Once our Corporate Plan is agreed the Council will create a new People Plan that aligns and supports our 
Corporate Plan and contributes to how we will achieve the highest quality service delivery for the people of 
Newport.   

Our People Plan will support our aspiration to become an employer of choice by enhancing the relationship 
between the Council and its workforce.  As well as underpinning and enabling our workforce to successfully 
deliver on the aspirations in our Corporate Plan, our people plan will drive inclusive employee engagement, 
productivity, and the Councils workforce potential to achieve for the next 5 years.  

 

Tudalen 17



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn



Scrutiny Report 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  September 2022 
 
Subject Annual Corporate Safeguarding 2020/21 
 
Author  Scrutiny Adviser  
 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Area / Role / Subject 
 

 
Finn Madell  
 

 
Head of Corporate Safeguarding 
 

 
Mary Ryan 
 

 
Head of Adult Services 

 
Natalie Poyner 
 

 
Head of Children’s Services 

 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 
 

 
 
2 Context 
 

Background  
 
2.1       This is the fifth review of the Annual Corporate Safeguarding Report.  

 
2.2 Further revisions to the format and data presented within this annual report have been made and 

it is anticipated that due to further work with partner agencies such as the Gwent Safeguarding 

1 Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked to 

1. Consider the Annual Corporate Safeguarding Executive Summary report, to 
scrutinise and review the progress of the key priority work plans for both corporate 
safeguarding arrangements and the safeguarding self- assessment findings for the 
whole Council.
 
2. Determine if it wishes to make any comment / recommendations to Cabinet 
regarding the report and the how the Council is managing corporate safeguarding.

Tudalen 19

Eitem Agenda 5



Board and advice from Welsh Government, a final version of the report model presented for 
Scrutiny will be agreed within the next two years.  

 
2.3 In order for the authority to comply with the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014, 

change to culture and practice has been required. This has seen a move toward social care that 
‘promotes the wellbeing of people and carers who need care and/or support’.  

 
2.4 There is a new Head of Corporate Safeguarding. This role falls under the management of the 

Director of Social Services.  
 
2.5 Respecting the wishes of the committee to provide only streamlined and targeted information within 

the report (February 2021), revisions to the format and data presented have been made to this 
report. Therefore, the changes are as follows; 

 
• Safeguarding team specific plans are no longer reported, only where key issues are identified will 

these be shared with members for their scrutiny. 
• The following report structure will be presented: 

o Scrutiny Recommendations (from previous reporting year) 
o Safeguarding Training Data and outcomes 
o Developments this year, including a review of the Corporate Safeguarding Work Plan 
o Key data for Safeguarding  
o Annual Review of Newport City Council Corporate Safeguarding Self -Assessment Audit 

(New 2021) 
o Future Work, Areas of stress/ risk, and Recommendations 
o Corporate Safeguarding Work Plan (Current/ Future Year) 
o Resource Implications 

 
2.6  Scrutiny have previously been advised of the new and increased number of Quality Standards (Key 

Performance Indicators) associated with ‘Safeguarding’ required to be reported to Welsh 
Government from April 2021 (from 3 to 26). As scrutiny of that data remains the responsibility of 
Scrutiny for the Annual Director’s Report for Social Services, there is no expectation on members 
of this group to formally comment on the data however, where possible, a selection of this data has 
been shared for context purposes when considering how effective safeguarding performance is 
being achieved within Council services.   

 
 
   
 Previous Consideration of Corporate Safeguarding 
 
2.7 At the last Scrutiny Committee review in July 2021, the Committee made the following comments 

to the Cabinet: 
  

• The Committee wished to recommend more monitoring the resources for the safeguarding team 
as they appreciated the increased need for it due to the 10% increase of referrals. 
 

• The Committee expressed their gratitude for the difficult job that the service area do. It was 
mentioned that the report itself was more of the operational side and did not give much insight 
into the underlying difficulties that they face and the issue of the report of the performance 
measures will not be published until June 2022.  
 

• The Committee requested that the Corporate Safeguarding provide more details on frequent 
problems, avoiding the confidentiality risk of certain details being shared. 
 

• The Committee also recommended that they remove the option for the scrutiny committee to 
comment on the Safeguarding staff structure and if it is fit for purpose. The members felt it would 
not be for them to comment on such an important structure that they do not have a good 
understanding of 

Tudalen 20

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/4/contents
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=446&MId=7954&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=7991&Ver=4&LLL=0


 
2.7 As Scrutiny is not a decision-making forum, the Scrutiny Committee’s review and subsequent 

comments / recommendations on this matter will be reported to the Cabinet for consideration and 
action.  

 
2 As Elected Members, and Scrutiny Members, the Committee has an important role in considering 

the arrangements that the Council has in place for Safeguarding, Corporately and for those in 
direct contact with vulnerable groups.  

 
 

3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 Attached at Appendix 1 is the Annual Corporate Safeguarding Executive Summary update.  This 

report provides key information on the topic of “safeguarding” for members, provides information 
on how well the Council is achieving on its safeguarding arrangements, and provides a specific 
focus on the areas in which the performance is AMBER or RED.  

 

4. Suggested Areas of Focus 
 
 Role of the Committee 
 

  
 
   
Section B – Supporting Information 
 

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:

• Establish whether associated key priorities and themes are appropriately addressed 
within the Action Plan (2022/2023) and planned actions are geared to meet the 
objectives within the timescale concerned.

• Determine whether there are any perceived areas of practice where objectives are not 
effectively addressed or met (both Corporate or within specific work plans of the 
Safeguarding Board)

• Consider whether the structure for the Newport Safeguarding Unit Structure and 
Individual Teams Key Priority Plans is appropriate to meet the Council’s 
responsibilities for safeguarding matters.

• Consider whether an adequate monitoring and performance management framework 
and measures are in place to ensure an appropriate level of management on an 
ongoing basis and to consider possible arrangements for the Committee to implement.

• Work towards a parity of approach with corporate safeguarding colleagues across the 
region to implement joint Wales Audit Office recommendations and Welsh 
Government Corporate Safeguarding guidance to enable bench marking. 

• Consider the level of planning and future provision of suitable training through a range 
of opportunities for Members in their roles as Councillors and Members of Scrutiny 
Committees.

Tudalen 21



5 Links to Council Policies and Priorities  
 

• The Annual Corporate Safeguarding report has links to both the Aspirational People and 
Resilient Communities Corporate Plan Commitment s and the related Wellbeing Objectives:  

 
Well-being 
Objectives  
 

Promote economic 
growth and 
regeneration whilst 
protecting the 
environment  
 

Improve skills, 
educational 
outcomes & 
employment 
opportunities  
 

Enable 
people to be 
healthy, 
independent 
& resilient  
 

Build cohesive 
& sustainable 
communities  
 

Corporate 
Plan 
Commitments 

Thriving City  Aspirational People Resilient 
Communities 

Supporting 
Function 

Modernised Council 

 
 
 
6 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act  
 
  

5 Ways of Working Types of Questions to consider: 
Can the Officers provide actions to any of the 
Amber and Red  

Long-term 
The importance of balancing short-term 

needs with the need to safeguard 
the5ability to also meet long-term needs. 

 

Are there any long term trends developing that 
could affect how this plan is implemented to 
how the actions are prioritised? 
 

Prevention  
Prevent problems occurring or getting 

worse. 

How are you ensuring that the needs of the 
service users monitored and are taken into 
account when developing the long term 
strategy? 
  

Integration 
Considering how public bodies’ wellbeing 
objectives may impact upon each of the 

well-being goals, on their other 
objectives, or on the objectives of other 

public bodies. 
 

How does the Council’s implementation of the 
plan impact upon the services of other public 
bodies and their objectives? 

Collaboration  
Acting in collaboration with any other 

person (or different parts of the 
organisation itself). 

How are you using the knowledge / information 
/ good practice of others to inform / influence 
the Council’s work? 

How as a Council are we ensuring we are 
consistently seeking the views of those who 
are impacted through the implementation of 
the plan? 
 

Involvement 
The importance of involving people with 
an interest in achieving the well-being 
goals, and ensuring that those people 
reflect the diversity of the area which the 
body serves. While developing a long term strategy, how are 

you ensuring the diverse communities are 
involved in your decision making?  
 

Tudalen 22



 
 
 
7. Background Papers 
 

Include all additional documents that are referenced in the report, and those that you have used 
as background reading. Hyperlink to online versions of them if available.  
 
• The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)  
• Corporate Plan 
• Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 
• Children (Wales) Act 2020 
• Previous Scrutiny Consideration of the Annual Safeguarding Report 
• Previous Cabinet Consideration of the Annual Safeguarding Report 
 

 
Report Completed: September 2022 

Tudalen 23

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s10273/Corporate%20Plan%20-%20Together%20for%20Newport.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/4/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2020/3
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=446&MId=7954&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=7991&Ver=4&LLL=0


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn



1 
 

Corporate Safeguarding Annual 
Report 
 
Scrutiny 
 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:   
 
Subject Corporate Safeguarding Annual Report 
 
Purpose For Scrutiny Members to scrutinise and make comments and recommendations on the Corporate Safeguarding Annual Report  
 
Proposal      
 

• To present an updated corporate safeguarding report, which monitors, scrutinises and objectively plans on the theme of “safeguarding” 
being fundamentally embedded within all aspects of council services, functions and duties.  

• To provide Scrutiny with essential and key information to allow effective scrutiny of the Councils’ safeguarding practice. 
• To update Scrutiny on the work undertaken to improve arrangements for safeguarding and protecting children and adults who require 

specific Council services and to ensure that these arrangements are effective. 
• To scrutinise and review the progress of “safeguarding” being embedded within Council services, and to scrutinise and review the 

effectiveness of the proposed work plan for corporate safeguarding arrangements. 
 
Author  Head of Corporate Safeguarding 

T
udalen 25



2 
 

Ward City wide 
 
Summary This is the fifth review of the annual corporate safeguarding report.  Further revisions to the format and data presented within this 

annual report have been made and it is anticipated that due to further work with partner agencies such as the Gwent 
Safeguarding Board and advice from Welsh Government, a final version of the report model presented for Scrutiny will be 
agreed within the next two years.  
There is a new Head of Corporate Safeguarding. This portfolio now sits with Finn Madell who came into post in January 2022. 
Respecting the wishes of the committee to provide only streamlined and targeted information within the report (February 2021), 
revisions to the format and data presented have been made to this report. Therefore the changes are as follows; 
 
➢ Safeguarding team specific plans are no longer reported, only where key issues are identified will these be shared with 

members for their scrutiny. 
➢ The following report structure will be presented: 

 
• Scrutiny Recommendations (from previous reporting year) 
• Safeguarding Training Data and outcomes 
• Developments this year, including a review of the Corporate Safeguarding Work Plan 
• Key data for Safeguarding  
• Annual Review of Newport City Council Corporate Safeguarding Self -Assessment Audit (New 2021) 
• Future Work, Areas of stress/ risk, and Recommendations 
• Corporate Safeguarding Work Plan (Current/ Future Year) 
• Resource Implications 

 
➢ Scrutiny have previously been advised of the new and increased number of Quality Standards (Key Performance Indicators) 

associated with ‘Safeguarding’ required to be reported to Welsh Government from April 2021 (from 3 to 26). As scrutiny of 
that data remains the responsibility of Scrutiny for the Annual Director’s Report for Social Services, there is no expectation 
on members of this group to formally comment on the data however, where possible, a selection of this data has been 
shared for context purposes when considering how effective safeguarding performance is being achieved within Council 
services.   

 
 
Action by     Head of Corporate Safeguarding 
 
Timetable Immediate 
 

T
udalen 26



3 
 

This report was prepared after consultation with: 
 

• Service Managers 
• Heads of Service 

 
 

Table of contents  

 

 
 
 
 

1.  Legislation and Scrutiny Recommendations (2020/2021) 
 

2.  Safeguarding Training Data and Outcomes 

3.  Developments this year (review of work plan) 

4.  Reviewed Annual Corporate Safeguarding Work Plan 2019/2020 

5.  Key Data for Safeguarding 

6.  Annual Review of Newport City Council Corporate Safeguarding Self -Assessment Audit  

7.  Future Work, Areas of Stress/ Risk, and Recommendations 

8.  Corporate Safeguarding Work Plan (2022/2023) 

9.  Resource Implications (Employment and Financial) 

T
udalen 27



4 
 

 
 
  

T
udalen 28



5 
 

1.  
1.1 Legislation  

The implementation of the Social Services and Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014 there has been both a cultural and practice change 
required from Adult and Children’s Services in order for the local authority to be compliant with the new legislation, moving away 
from the traditional models of providing social care services to one which ‘promotes the wellbeing of people and carers who need 
care and/or support’.  The Act provides opportunity for innovation and positive change and certainly focusses on the “Well-being” 
of our citizens.  
 
One of the most significant changes from a safeguarding perspective is the definition of an “adult at risk” and the legal duty to 
report where there are concerns identified for either a child or adult.  This legal duty to report is of significance and clearly 
illustrates how safeguarding is everybody’s business, hence the establishment of a corporate safeguarding report of this nature to 
assure members of the pro-active arrangements which the local authority are under taking in safeguarding provisions and service 
planning. The data within the report continues to evidence a rise in referrals to all front door pathways. The rise relates to better 
communication with and reporting from health partners, provider agencies and our own social work teams, therefore, the rise in 
referrals is suggestive of a more robust system which protects our citizens and again is a positive improvement in respect of 
safeguarding practices within Newport. 
 
Newport City Council remains an active member of the “Gwent Safeguarding Board”, which is an amalgamation of the two former 
specific regional boards. Newport continue to host the regional Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 
(VAWDASV) team and work closely with the regional Partnership Board (VAWDASVB).  
 
Newport officers are involved at all levels of the work of the boards.  Heads of Children and Adult services are members at both 
Board’s, the Head of Corporate Safeguarding for Newport chairs the Business Planning meeting for both boards and also chairs 
the local safeguarding network meetings in Newport. The local safeguarding practitioner network meet in Newport bi monthly and 
is attended by all partner agencies working across Newport for Adults, Children and specialist services. The local safeguarding 
network also arranges 2 practitioner events per year, which is open to all practitioners in Newport. The events update 
practitioners on all local and regional developments such as learning/messages from Child/Adult practice reviews, new services 
and local developments, as well as introducing updated policies and/or procedures. There is a National Independent 
Safeguarding Board which will work alongside the regional boards to secure improvements in safeguarding policy and practice 
throughout Wales.  All regional boards have duties and responsibilities to submit information to the National Independent 
Safeguarding Board. 
 

T
udalen 29



6 
 

Members were advised in the previous report of the Children Wales Act (2020). The Act is to help protect children’s rights by 
prohibiting the physical punishment of children by parents and those acting in loco parentis within Wales, including visitors to 
Wales. In doing so, children in Wales now have the same legal protection from physical punishment as adults.  In practice this 
might typically involve a smack given as a telling-off to a child (whether on the child’s bottom, legs or other part of the body). The 
definition is not limited to smacking. A case where a parent shook a child, or poked a child in the chest or pulled their hair, as a 
punishment for perceived wrong-doing, for instance, will also be caught. The change brought clear duties on local authorities to 
ensure that not only practice is in place to manage and support citizens in relation to these changes but also in relation to our 
recording/ reporting duties being in place in advance (safeguarding specific quality performance indicators). The NCC 
performance team ensured that the new reporting requirements are built into the WCCIS system to capture the required data in 
relation to this required data; eg:  
 
CH/ 005a Of those contacts received during the year:  The number where physical punishment by a parent or care was a factor 
CH/ 005b The number where physical punishment by a parent or carer was the only factor 
 
 

1.2 Scrutiny Recommendations (2020/2021) 
 

Scrutiny requested that some Freedom Of Information requests are put onto the website so that the team do not have to do 
the work twice when receiving similar queries from journalists and the public. This recommendation has been duly noted and 
will form a wider workstream around the Digital Strategy Process. This is will be a priority area of work with a devised programme of 
implementation to evidence transparency and to make the best use of the digital technology offer Newport has available.  
 
Scrutiny requested more clarity in signposting for the Transparency page, and that the Transparency page is more 
consistently updated with information. This action is covered above. There will be a program devised to look at how digital 
technology can reflect the work.  

Members of Committee expressed a desire to review the design and usage of the website at some point. This 
recommendation is a priority and will be part of an implementation plan linked to the revised website from September 2022 

  

  

T
udalen 30



7 
 

 
2. Safeguarding Training Data and Outcomes  

 
2.1 Compliance rates with Mandatory Safeguarding Training for ALL employees, as well as elected members and volunteers, remains 

low this year.  There are 3 specific mandatory courses with associated regulatory requirements for council employees to complete, 
these are the General Data Protection Regulations Training (GDPR); Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 
and “Safeguarding Involves Us All- Awareness Training”.   
 

2.2 It is important to continue to stress that there are mitigating factors for training figures being low in this period which must be taken 
into account. These factors have also been given due regard by regulatory bodies as they have not issued fines/ regulatory actions 
during this period, however, this continued acceptance will rightly not be continually extended. The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted 
on many of the workforce itself being affected in some way (directly with caring responsibilities; in shielding; family losses; illness and 
so on) resulting in their work patterns changing and reducing the number of staff physically working over the period. The pandemic 
has prevented the opportunity to provide face to face learning resulting with a number of service areas being unable to access the 
mandatory training as they have limited/ no e-learning opportunity. It is to be noted that the circumstances have prompted positive 
consideration to training delivery and how these can be more accessible and flexible.  

 
2.3 The “Safeguarding Involves Us All- Awareness Training” e-learning module was launched in May 2020. Face to face sessions have 

not been deliverable to date due to the pandemic but creation of a training schedule will commence from September 2022.  National 
Safeguarding weeks in November 2020 and 2021 were used to promote the mandatory requirement by a campaign utilising staff 
communications such as newsletters, bulletins and announcements. The Safeguarding Champions have continued to provide targeted 
communications to their service area, including informing team managers of those who cannot access staff intranet facilities e.g. some 
school staff.  

  

T
udalen 31



8 
 

2.4  
 

 

 

The data table at 2.4 shows the completion of the two of the mandatory courses for e-learning only as a % for the service area 
workforce. 20/21 data demonstrated that the campaign for the Safeguarding course had a significant impact on the uptake of course 
completion. There has been an 8% completion increase over the course of the following year which is below desired completion. 
Following the review of this annual data capture, an action is to evaluate how to target those services areas with lowest completion 
rates, with quarterly reviews while continuing to seek the ambitious 90% completion rate across all services with campaigns.  
 
 
 
 

  

74
63

40 44

63

44

66
75

4045
61

30
46

63 58 61

82

38

0

20

40

60

80

Adults
 &

 Community
 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

Child
ren &

 Young P
eople 

Se
rvi

ce
s City

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

Educa
tio

n 

Fin
an

ce
 

La
w &

 Regu
lat

ion 

People an
d Buiness 

Chan
ge

 

Rege
nerat

ion...

Sch
ools

VAWDASV Safeguarding

Training Data 2021/22

T
udalen 32



9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

61

45
32 35

60

39

54
40

21
15 14

3 3
9 10 8

28

6

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

Adults
 &

 Community
 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

Child
ren &

 Young P
eople 

Se
rvi

ce
s City

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

Educa
tio

n 

Fin
an

ce
 

La
w &

 Regu
lat

ion 

People an
d Buiness 

Chan
ge

 

Rege
nerat

ion...

Sch
ools

VAWDASV Safeguarding

Training % increase from 20/21 to 21/22

2021/2022 E-Learning Information Security Training 
(Via Teams) by staff number

Adult and Children Services (combined) 167
City Services 26
Education 76
Finance 18
Law & Regulation 60
People & Business Change 23
Regeneration Investment & Housing 67
Total = 437 

The Information Management Training completion reflects the positive impact the launch made in 2020/21 and demonstrates 
a lower completion rate for 2021/22 across service areas. The team however deliver the training via several methods, have 
increased their face to face and teams training programme and participant numbers. This provides flexibility and availability for 
staff to complete their training. Information Management also recommends as part of policy that if a data breach is made, the 
staff members involved attend a Teams or face to face session within the next quarter, as part of constructive action. 

T
udalen 33



10 
 

Overall compliance for the entire workforce for both courses is at 46%. It is to be noted that there has been a large percentage 
increase in relation to the VAWDASV e-learning module completion across all service areas. This evidences that the campaign 
during National Safeguarding week, prompting VAWDASV and bulletin to Safeguarding Champions had impact. VAWDASV was 
specifically emphasised, due to Newport Local Authority returning the lowest rates across Gwent Local Authorities, Aneurin Bevan 
Health Board and emergency services in the previous years.  
 
From the Safeguarding Champion’s work, the Safeguarding team are aware of which service areas require in-person training and 
these sessions will be launched as part of the September schedule. In lieu of the training, those team managers have been asked to 
remind their remote workers of their corporate responsibilities for safeguarding, where the safeguarding polices can be accessed 
and the name of their Safeguarding Champion if they have any questions.  City Services have highlighted to the Safeguarding team 
that they require in person sessions to reach all remote workers and staff with limited access to IT equipment during their working 
day, this is an area addressed through the self-assessment audit feedback and work plan (2021/2022).  
 
2.5 The data at 2.5 shows the participation rates across the last 3 years for the e-learning module only. The current requirement for 
the VAWDASV training is to complete the course once. The training is delivered via in person sessions but is not reflected here. The 
data reflects that the campaign in 2021 did influence the uptake/ completion of the VAWDASV training in all service areas across the 
council significantly, however, the compliancy rate for the course is still below the 90% expectation. 
  

2 1
10

0 1 4 2 3 2
13 18

8 9 3 5 12

35
19

74
63

40 44

63

44

66
75

40

0

20

40

60

80

Adults
...

Child
ren &

 Young 

People Se
rvi

ce
s 

City
 Se

rvi
ce

s 

Educa
tio

n 

Fin
an

ce
 

La
w &

 Regu
lat

ion 

People an
d Buiness 

Chan
ge

 

Rege
nerat

ion...

Sch
ools

19/20 20/21 21/22

VAWDASV 3 year tracking 2022

T
udalen 34



11 
 

The VAWDASV team have stated that their specialist additional training has had a low update across 2021/22 period however there 
was attendance by Newport employees to all courses offered, with 26 people completing the Ask and Act Group 2 sessions.  

  

National Training Framework 

Ask and Act Group 2 – 26

Ask and Act Group 3 – 3 

National Training Framework 
Ask and Act Group 2 – 26
Ask and Act Group 3 – 3 

Specialist Syllabus Training
Understanding Domestic Abuse and Coercive Control – 3 
Risk and MARAC – 7 
Domestic abuse and the Affect on Children and Young People – 8 
Understanding Sexual Violence – 6 
Understanding Perpetrators – 5 
Understanding HBA, FM and FGM – 4 
Understanding and Working With Male Victims – 2 
Vicarious Trauma and Wellbeing – 4 
Perpetrators in the Workplace – 1 
Trauma bonding – 1 
Sexuality and Gender Diversity Awareness – 1 
Neurodiversity and Trauma – 2

T
udalen 35



12 
 

2.6 This continued trend in the low uptake in mandatory training across the workforce requires collective oversight by the council.  
Regulatory bodies have accepted mitigating factors to date and there have been improvements seen across the service areas for 
some courses, however, the council requires a corporate steer from People and Business Change to ensure that “Mandatory 
Safeguarding Training” is completed for all new starters and current employees which is formally tracked and appropriate review/ 
action taken when not complied with. Colleagues from within People and Business Change are able to reassure that the ‘on 
boarding’ process of completing all mandatory training for every new starter, including volunteers is now in place. 

 
2.7 As part of the training schedule under construction for a September 2022 launch, a review of the Safeguarding Involves Us All e-

learning module will be made. This will include creating a revised version to prevent duplication with the Welsh Government 
module within the All Wales Basic Safeguarding Training pack, which is a single consistent safeguarding training module 
launched for public and voluntary sector staff across Wales in November 2021. Newport City Council’s module will continue to 
include the specific policies and supporting documents to ensure employees are not only aware of their duty to be vigilant for the 
signs of abuse but their corporate responsibilities including duty to report and the safeguarding expectations upon them when 
working for the council.  

 
2.8 It is therefore a strong recommendation to Members that Cabinet endorse the work plan action (2022/2023) for People and 

Business Change to adopt new ways of working into their priority planning for both new starters to the authority and current 
employees (including volunteers and members) in completing mandatory Safeguarding training in order to improve compliance 
rates; meet the objectives of the Council’s commitment to ensuring “Safeguarding Involves Us All”; and in ensuring fines or 
regulatory action are not taken by governing bodies against Newport City Council. 

 
3 Developments this year  

 
3.1 Volunteers/ Chaperones Register for Newport City Council 
 

Members are advised that a mapping exercise across all Council service areas has been undertaken and a project group between the 
Safeguarding Unit and People and Business Change is in place to effectively manage and implement a central register of volunteers/ 
chaperones used across the organisation as per Welsh Audit Office recommendations (2019 inspection).  The project has identified 
where volunteers (paid/ unpaid) and chaperones are used currently/ or potentially could be used. The current “Volunteer Policy” will 
then be reviewed within the next quarter and updated following the agreements relating to procedural changes made linked to the 
recruitment/ training/ updating of volunteers details with central HR.  

T
udalen 36



13 
 

 

 
 

3.2 Newport Safeguarding Hub update 
 

The Newport Safeguarding Hub is the authority’s ‘front door’ process with the co-location of Police and Social Services personnel 
enabling sharing of immediate information and improved and timelier decision making for safeguarding children and adults. It remains 
clear that the safeguarding Hub, would be further enhanced with an improved interface between Health and Education representatives 
which goes beyond single points of contact (SPOC). There has been a particular challenge in resourcing a greater presence. Wider 
partnership co-location in the hub such as the Early Intervention Team responding to PPN’s (police notifications) and joint agency 
decision making remains effective. 
 
The Newport Safeguarding hub model and its successes has resulted in the model being adopted regionally.  There are now 2 
Safeguarding Hubs in Gwent split East and West, with the East covering Newport and Monmouthshire while the West covers Caerphilly, 
Torfaen and Blaenau Gwent. Although the two areas have slight differences in terms of structure, the vision of the Safeguarding Hub is 
the same, and that is to have Police and Children’s Services co-located at the Front door to allow for timely decision making, improved 
quality of referrals and improved early intervention.   
 
The “adult at risk” safeguarding pathway process is still presenting through two referral pathways through both the Safeguarding Hub 
and First Contact Team.  The single pathway for all adults at risk (duty to enquire referrals) to be managed through one point of access 
and determine the initial action requires further work and remains an outstanding area of stress/ risk. This means the reliability of data 
still comes from two referral points and from a practice perspective the management of the process when responding to the regulatory 
timescales/ requirements on which team will undertake the process may be compromised.  Having one streamlined process would 
alleviate any discrepancies. This is work in progress and an updated service proposal will be available in September.  
 
The quality measures (performance indicators) for the Newport Safeguarding Hub are now clearly the reporting responsibility of the 
Annual Director’s Report for Social Services. However, as discussed there are safeguarding performance measures captured at The 
Safeguarding Hub which will be presented for Member’s awareness to assure them of the authority’s performance in terms of statutory 
responsibilities; Children’s safeguarding processes (contacts/strategy discussions/ initial conferences); Adults at Risk (duty to enquire); 
which will be presented here. Members are also directed to Section 5 for additional Key Data for Safeguarding. 
 

T
udalen 37



14 
 

There was a significant downturn in referrals (Children’s Services) in April 2020 due to the initial pandemic lockdown, this would be 
expected. However, since then the number of referrals that have progressed through the Hub has accelerated and with continued 
acceleration across 2021/22.  
 

  

8921

9732

11311

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10000 12000

Safeguarding Hub Referrals over last 3 years. Increase 
by 13.9%

308

826

1034

850

700

965

808 861
747

681

829

9701020 1037
1082

954
812

950 990 965

813 829
903 956

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

April
May

June
July

Augu
st

Se
ptember

Octo
ber

Nove
mber

Dece
mber

Jan
uary

Fe
bruary

Marc
h

Series1 Series2

Monthly referrals 2 year tracking 

Referrals to the Safeguarding Hub (Children’s Services) have overall increased by 13.9% compared to 2020/21. Police referrals are the most 
frequent referral source. The current resource provision of early intervention support with a step up- step down model via the prevention 
service and children’s duty team is the correct practice model in place to address the needs of families in acute stress, responding to need 
and escalating only those families where thresholds are appropriate. The data suggests that there are effective controls within the 
safeguarding HUB, that there is compliancy and effective safeguarding arrangements in terms of children’s decision making and the 
statutory responsibilities for timely decision making.

T
udalen 38



15 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Adult Duty to Reports received 997 

Total No. of Adults at risk 753 

From which Adult suspected of being at risk (of the 997 DTR's 783 required enquires to be 
made) 783 

Breakdown of non-criminal investigations 73 
Breakdown of criminal investigations 67 
Breakdown of ABUHB Adult Safeguarding cases **DTR cases owned by Health DLM 44 

167
3
11
35

1739
93

1247
88

503
238

1195
4986

207
725

74

3rd Sector organisation
Advocate

Ambulance Service
Early Intervention / Prevention Service (Step-up)

Education
Friend or neighbour

Health
Housing

Internal (Social Worker, other team)
Local Authority

Other
Police

Probation
Relative

Self

0 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000 6000

Referral sources 2021/22

T
udalen 39



16 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The total number of reports of an adult suspected of being at risk received in 2019/20 was 905. The trend of a 3% drop per year did not 
continue and 92 more referrals where received, increasing by 9.2%. It is to be noted that 753 Adults were the "victims" reported via the 997 
DTR's, hence some Adults reported more than once. Health professionals and care providers accounted for 54% of the referrals, evidencing 
strong multiagency working.  

 

3.3 National Referral Mechanism pilot for young people. Newport are piloting devolved decision making around the NRM referral process 
on behalf of The Home Office. Newport are leading on this for the Gwent region. This enables us to dovetail cases of modern 
slavery/trafficking/exploitation with safeguarding at a local level. This is one of ten UK pilots that will run until March 2023. It is highly likely that 
this devolved decision making will be a duty for all Local Authorities in the future as local responses to presenting local issues better safeguard 
children and young people.  

 
 
 

929

905

875

997

800

820

840

860

880

900

920

940

960

980

1000

1020

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Adult Safeguarding Referrals Received

T
udalen 40



17 
 

 
4 Reviewed Annual Corporate Safeguarding Work Plan 2020/2021 

What outcomes do we 
want to achieve? 
(objectives to achieve) 

How will we make this happen? When will we 
achieve this? 

How will we know it’s making 
a difference? (performance 
measures) 

RAG 
status 

Reviewed Status 

1. Mandatory 
safeguarding training 
compliance to be 
corporately addressed 
by People and Business 
Change urgently via 
new ways of working for 
both new starters to the 
authority (via on-
boarding process) and 
for current employees 
(via I-Trent tracking and 
employee check ins and 
if necessary, capability 
procedures for non 
completion) in order to 
avoid fines/ regulatory 
action for continued 
non-compliance. 

People and Business Change to 
ensure that Mandatory 
Safeguarding Training is 
addressed as part of their priority 
planning for 2021/2022. 
 
New starters-  via on-boarding 
process: Project currently being 
reviewed by Jane Westwood 
(PBC April 2021) 
 
Current Employees- via I-trent/ 
employee check-ins.  Proposed 
by Rachael Davies (PBC April 
2021) 

Proposed for 
PBC to 
progress as a 
matter of 
urgency 

Compliancy rates for 
mandatory safeguarding 
training will improve across all 
service areas and the council 
will not receive fines or 
regulatory action. 
 
The council will be able to 
easily track compliance with 
mandatory training and 
address with service areas 
where there are issues with low 
up take and identify if barriers 
exist and address these swiftly. 
 
Completion of mandatory 
safeguarding training for all 
employees will result in a work 
force that is aware of its duties 
and responsibilities. 

RED AMBER 

People and Business Change 
had Mandatory Safeguarding 
Training as part of their priority 
planning for 2021/2022. PBC are 
finalising the mandatory training 
booklet including safeguarding 
(to replace the employee version 
via NHS portal due to challenges 
of access/IT skills).  

The onboarding process is in 
place where the mandatory 
training is to be completed. 
Further structures need to be in 
place to review impact of 
onboarding process and regular 
re-training schedule monitoring.  

Work within I-Trent ongoing.  

2. Re- Launch e-
learning basic 
safeguarding training for 
ALL employees and 

- E-learning side of module 
successfully launched; 
implementation of face to face 
(F2F) facilitation to be established 

- F2F training 
date tbd in 
relation to 
endemic 
situation  

All new employees will have 
completed basic safeguarding 
awareness training and know 
their council duties and 

AMBER 
for Face 
to Face 
learning 

AMBER 

Face to face learning schedule 
to launch September 2022.   

T
udalen 41



18 
 

members- ensure 
compliancy across all 
service areas within the 
first year for course 
completion is as close to 
target 90% 

as soon as endemic relaxation will 
allow. 

 
 
- On boarding 
process tbc by 
PBC by July 
2021 

responsibilities prior to 
commencing their position. 
 
Target completion rate of 
existing employees and 
members will be met and be up 
to date with basic safeguarding 
awareness and their council 
duties and responsibilities. 
 
This can be scrutinised and 
tracked through the data within 
the annual figures within 
Corporate SG report and where 
non-compliance is identified the 
service area can be 
challenged. 

and on-
boarding 
process 
for new 
starters 

 

Onboarding process for new 
starters in place as for July 
2022.  

 

Overall completion rate since 
launch is 46%.  

Revisions of the package 
required to reflect All Wales 
Basic Safeguarding Training 
pack from Welsh Government  

 

 

3. Develop a corporate 
register of volunteers/ 
chaperones/ mentors 
(paid/ unpaid) for all 
Council Service areas 

Creation of a register where 
Volunteers, etc. may be used 
within service areas and what 
training/ checks would be required 
for their role- this requires to be 
linked to the Volunteers Policy 
and then publicised; cascaded to 
staff through varying forums.  (to 
be completed in collaboration with 
POD & training). 

- PBC to 
collate the 
details of the 
current list of 
volunteers/ 
chaperones 
across the 
organisation 
(May 2021) 
 
- PBC (with 
support of SG 
Unit) to update 
Volunteers 
Policy to 
ensure new 

There will be a centrally located 
register held by POD of all 
volunteers used across all 
council service areas.  Should 
information be required about a 
volunteer (ie. their training/ 
safeguarding check status) 
then this information can be 
quickly accessed. 

AMBER  GREEN 

The ‘central register’ has been 
set up in I-Trent (and we have 
populated volunteer details 
where they have been provided 
by service areas) 

Combined application form/on-
boarding to capture details of 
any agreed volunteer (which will 
include sign-off that they’ve read 
and understood the mandatory 
training) in final stage. The 

T
udalen 42



19 
 

processes 
reflect 
requirements 
and Corporate 
SG 
requirements 
regarding 
mandatory 
training (July 
2021) 
 
- Campaign/ 
dissemination/ 
SG champ 
forum of 
revamped 
Volunteers 
Policy in 
August 2022 

volunteer will be issued with a 
‘contract’ setting out 
principles/expectations of 
volunteering for NCC 

Update the final version of the 
Policy/Guidance for Volunteers 
to be completed July 2022, with 
a planned campaign of 
promotion across Council to 
ensure managers are 
signposting their volunteers to 
complete all our processes  

An item on the council jobs page 
to ask any speculative enquiry 
about volunteering for NCC so 
PBC can review and send to 
relevant service area for 
consideration 

4. Develop a tiered 
safeguarding training 
framework for all roles 
across the organisation 
(including volunteers) to 
be clear on the level of 
safeguarding training 
and safeguarding check 
they must have in order 
to undertake their role 

Early stages of the project with 
Social Services training 
department, identifying roles 
within services areas.  
Collaboration with POD is being 
arranged to develop this project. 
 

Arrange 
project 
meeting with 
Safeguarding 
Unit; Training 
Department 
and PBC- lead 
officers Claire 
Broome (SS 
Training) and 
Lynsey 
Thomas 
(Safeguarding 

There will be a clear 
safeguarding training 
framework which staff/ 
managers from all council 
service areas can access to 
identify what level of 
safeguarding training is 
required for their employment 
role (including volunteers) to 
ensure compliancy in terms of 
safeguarding training. 
 

AMBER 
due to 
roll over 
from 
previous 
work 
plan 
task  

AMBER 

Initial project meetings held with 
Safeguarding Unit; Training 
Department and PBC- lead 
officers Claire Broome (SS 
Training) and Lynsey Thomas 
(Safeguarding Unit) in July and 
August 2021. Due staff changes 
and circumstance this project 
had been paused.  

T
udalen 43



20 
 

Unit) – July 
2021 

This tiered training framework 
could also be developed as a 
future project to be linked to the 
clear review and personal 
development plans of 
employees. 

Within July and August 2022, 
this wider project will be 
discussed when creating a face 
to face training schedule for 
Safeguarding training.  

 

5. Improve how 
“safeguarding” 
information is 
communicated 
externally to the citizens 
of Newport in order to 
ensure that our citizens 
know who to contact if 
they need information, 
advice or assistance 
and to promote the 
Council’s commitment to 
safeguarding by 
communicating 
essential information 
and highlighting where 
changes have or will be 
made (ie. legislation/ 
policy/ council 
procedures). 
 
“Communicating 
Information to Citizens 
about the Children-
Abolition of Defence of 
Reasonable Punishment 
Law” in 2022 is 

Review the current Newport.gov 
webpages to ensure that the 
information is up to date/ useful/ 
engaging 

1) Content 
development 
of pages and 
ratification of 
content by 
CSMT by 
August 2021 
 
2) 
Dissemination 
strategy to be 
agreed with 
Comms & 
Marketing 
department 
upon 
agreement of 
information 
content  
IT web page 
content 
development 
and launch by 
September 
2021) 

Citizens of Newport report that 
they can access information, 
advice and assistance and feel 
that the information is 
communicated to them clearly. 

AMBER  AMBER 

Content development 
undertaken however due to 
additional streamlined resources 
developed by the Welsh 
Government, how want a cross 
Wales approach, additional work 
has begun to reflect this 
requirement. Proposed pages 
will be submitted to CSMT by 
end of September 2022 with 
proposed launch of November 
2022 to coincide with National 
Safeguarding week.  

 

Meetings with Comms and 
Marketing team to be arranged 
for August 2022.  

T
udalen 44



21 
 

promoted on 
Newport.gov website. 

6. Child Protection 
Conference Process 
quality assurance 
review and audit 

Audit and evaluation of the 
process changes and feedback 
from practitioners/ partners/ 
service users. 

1) Virtual 
conference 
change 
occurring early 
summer 
(June/ July 
2021), 
therefore, 1st 
audit review 
within 3 
months 
approx. 
October 2021 
 
2) Case file 
audit of 
WCCIS form 
development 
for Child 
Protection 
Conference to 
assure quality 
to coincide 
with virtual 
conference 
changes at 1. 
 
3) Practitioner/ 
child/ agency 
feedback on 
process 
changes to 
inform review 

Child Protection Conferences 
in Newport are a collaborative 
process which engage all of 
those participants involved, 
promoting the voice of the child 
and central to the process. 

Green 1)Blended Case Conferences 
working well with 90% parents 
attending the meetings face to 
face. Blended meeting have also 
helped with meeting attendance 
and quoracy.  

 

 

 

2) This is ongoing. Case 
Conference forms were 
simplified. This has led to them 
being completed more fully. 
Parents understand the form. 

 

 

 

3) Positive feedback on the form  

T
udalen 45



22 
 

and audit- 
findings to 
CSMT 
December 
2021 

7. Campaign Promoting 
the role of the 
“Designated 
Safeguarding 
Lead/Officer” (ie. 
person responsible for 
making child/ adult at 
risk referrals) and the 
differences with the 
“Safeguarding 
Champion” for the 
Service Area (ie. person 
who disseminates 
information about 
Safeguarding and takes 
a corporate lead for 
information sharing)- it 
is vital employees know 
who to report their 
concerns to and that 
those with DSL/O 
responsibilities and 
duties have the 
adequate training/ 
resources/support to 
fulfil these obligations.   
 

A clear need for a new campaign 
on identifying who the DSL/O is 
for every team in every service 
area is needed and ensuring that 
those people are adequately 
trained for the role/ supported and 
that they are known and promoted 
to their teams/ service areas as 
the person responsible for making 
child/adult at risk referrals. 
 

- Individual 
service area 
feedback from 
self 
evaluations 
commencing 
June 2021 
 
 
- SG 
Champions 
forum 
highlighting 
information 
(September 
2021) 
 
- DSL/O 
Campaign 
September 
2021 

Within the 2022 annual 
corporate safeguarding self 
assessments there will be a 
more informed knowledge base 
and response across the entire 
service area that it is the role of 
the “DSL/O” as the person who 
makes child/ adult at risk 
referrals. 
 
Improved knowledge across all 
service areas in safeguarding 
terminology/ language. 
 
Every employee knows who to 
report their concerns to if they 
have concerns for a child or 
adult at risk and the names of 
designated safeguarding leads/ 
officers are known/ displayed 
amongst teams/ departments.  

GREEN GREEN 

Safeguarding Champions to 
be addressed by directorates 
due to staffing changes  

8. Liberty Protection 
Safeguard training 
across Newport adult 
and children services 

 Regional 
consortium 
training 
calendar tbc 

Adequately skilled workforce 
who have received the 
specialised regional training 
who are able to adapt to the 

GREEN GREEN 

Completed within Adult 
Services, with new starters 

T
udalen 46



23 
 

prior to regulation 
changes in 2022 

transition from DoLs to LPS 
when it is applied in 2022. 
(No date set for implementation 
yet due to consultation of the 
new Code of Practice to be 
completed across the UK, 
possibly 2023) 

receiving the support for 
adaption from DoLs to LPS.  

 

5 Key Data for Safeguarding  
 

5.1 This section comprises the data required. Thus Members will be routinely provided with the performance data regarding 
referrals to the Local Authority Designated Officer  (DOS/LADO); the performance figures provided to Welsh Government 
relating to the number of children named on Newport’s Child Protection Register as at 31st March each year; the number of 
children “looked after” as at 31st March and the number of children accommodated during the course of the year.  The adults at 
risk (duty to enquire) statistics and reporting in relation to child assessment through to child protection processes will also be 
routinely provided.   

 
5.2 Professional concerns 

 

  
Total PSM 
(Cases) 

Substantiated  Un-substantiated  Unfounded  Deliberately 
invented or 
malicious 

Threshold 
not met / 
Awaiting 
outcome  

2019 93 33 22 5 0 40 
2020 90 22 17 10 0 51 
2021 81 31 11 5 1 52 

T
udalen 47



24 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The table and graph at 5.2 provide data on the number of professional strategy meetings convened by the LADO, their outcomes, and the 
referral sources over the past 3 years.  Members are advised that there has been a change in the outcome category introduced by the Wales 

 

Total 
PSM 
(Cases) Substantiated  

Un-
substantiated  Unfounded  

Deliberately 
invented or 
malicious 

Threshold 
not met / 
Awaiting 
outcome  

2019 93 33 22 5 0 40 
2020 90 22 17 10 0 51 
2021 81 31 11 5 1 52 

4
1

3

5

2
761

2
3

2 21

Fostering NCC Fostering Private / Other NCC Transport 

NCC Education Education Other Childcare 

Health NCC - SSD NCC - Residential 

Residential - Other NCC LA Cadets 

Charity 

Concerns raised by professional type 
 Outcomed cases 2021/22

T
udalen 48



25 
 

Safeguarding Procedures. Thus malicious and demonstrably false are no longer used and a new category, “deliberately invented or malicious”, 
has been introduced from 2020. 

There has been no significant trend or concern identified within the professional strategy meetings (professional concerns) occurring within this 
period. Processes are in place and are well controlled.   

 
5.3 The number of children named on Newport’s Child Protection Register as at 5.7.22 was 143.   

Members are advised this is a low/medium average with other Gwent Local Authorities. There is a continued commitment to 
collaborative working with families and risk reduction. 

 
5.4 The number of children “looked after” as at 5.7.22 was 341, a reduction from 376 previously.   

The number of children who ceased to be “looked after” rose by 28 during the course of the year from 92 to 120. Members are 
reminded that ceasing “Child Looked After” status can be favourable for a number of reasons including “Turned 18 years old and 
continuing to live with foster parent/s in a ‘When I Am Ready arrangement’; Adoption; returned home to live with parents, relatives, 
or other person with parental responsibility (not under a residence order or special guardianship order); Special guardianship order 
made to former foster carers; Transferred To Care Of Adult Social Services).   

 
Comparatively to last year’s Child Looked After figures there has been a reduction. The per 10,000 rate of children who are looked 
after continues to be the lowest in Gwent and below the Wales average. The number of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children 
has increased by 66% and this continues to distort the number of children who are looked after in Newport. Significant work with 
our early intervention and prevention services to support families to stay together anticipates a further drive in safely reducing the 
child looked after population and returning “out of authority” placements to in-house provisions.  Newport continues to develop our 
in house residential services working on at a Gwent level to increase emergency provision.  Newport has a short breaks home for 
children with disabilities, 3 x four bed children’s home which also have 1 emergency bed available for up to 6 weeks.  There is also 
a smaller home which accommodates one young person. Newport is developing, in partnership with health, a 4 bed regional 
children’s home which is short term provision to step down or prevention escalation for those children with high level 
emotional/behavioural needs.  Newport is also developing regional emergency accommodation, 4 annexes that can accommodate 
1 or 2 children depending on need. Newport has approximately 130 foster carers.  Newport’s children placed with private fostering 
numbers continue to decrease as the teams work hard to return children to Newport or prevent them from leaving by providing 

T
udalen 49



26 
 

alternative care.  The Programme for Government elimination of profit agenda has had a significant impact on external private 
providers and will mean that Newport will need to continue to build in house provision ad plan to return children from private 
provision. 
 

6 Annual Review of Newport City Council Corporate Safeguarding Self -Assessment Audit 
 

6.1 Review period 
We are reviewing the self assessment tool following the issuing of the Welsh Government guidance on Corporate Safeguarding. 
We are working Gwent wide with Safeguarding Service Manager counterparts to merge existing forms to reflect the shared 
issues. This will enable benchmarking and commonality of approach. We are including the audit recommendations into this work. 
We have met collectively and have another date to further look at this in September. In Newport, we are keen to establish a 
reporting cycle for corporate Safeguarding to ensure that all colleagues are aware of the timescales for Case file audits, 
Safeguarding Self Assessments and the annual report. This was significantly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 

6.2 Quality of returns 
Service areas have a returned self assessments with various approaches. It has been useful to capture positive practices that are 
already fully embedded across the council. The process has highlighted to managers areas of improvement to refine 
safeguarding practices for their staff and the citizen who use their services. The method of completion was varied and resulted in 
different quality returns. Corporate Safeguarding will need to provide tailored support and guidance for the next completion of 
returns, to ensure there is deep level of scrutiny across all teams, to gain accurate insight and to help improve practices. 
Individual feedback with specific goals for each service area will be provided by September 2022.  Corporate Safeguarding have 
plans to work in partnership with the Gwent Safeguarding Board and neighbouring local authorities to create a South East Wales 
regional self-assessment tool for safeguarding. This will enable common themes and gaps to be identified and tackled across the 
region as well as sharing good practice. 
 

6.3 Themes per Standard 
 
Standard 1 Policy & Practice (Robust) How robust are your safeguarding practices in your service area? 
Strengths  
All service areas report they utilise the suite of corporate safeguarding policies, including the Safer Recruitment process and 
recognise the responsibility for the associated training for all employees to be completed. Services were able to reference specific 
service area policies that relate to safeguarding, which further evidence a commitment to embedding these within their 

T
udalen 50



27 
 

processes.  Service areas were able to clearly respond to questions regarding checks and volunteers, demonstrating an 
understanding of each topic.  
Actions 
Training – All areas are aware of the mandatory requirement of the training packages for all employees. Service areas confirmed 
that the onboarding process for new starters ensured applicable staff completed the courses in the first stages of employment. 
Tracking training and refresher completion of existing colleagues is an improvement most service areas identify. Managers are 
keen to address training gaps during team meetings or supervisions, to ensure safeguarding is prioritised and monitored 
regularly. Suggestions included regular reports for each service area to be issued by the training host or integrating training 
records and reminders with iTrent.  
Actions: Delivery of in person training to be arranged as a priority for employee’s who have limited access to e-learning 
packages. Training tracking to be discussed with HR partners and implemented.  
 
DBS Checks – Service areas reported DBS checks are completed for roles where regulated activity occurs.  
Action – refresher training for managers to ensure all are aware of what constitutes regulated activity and how frequency of 
activity requires different levels of checks.  
 
Designated Safeguarding Lead/Designated Safeguarding Officer (DSL/DSO) – Although individuals are made aware of their 
Duty to Report, most service areas were unsure who their DSL/DSOs were. This lack of clarity needs to be addressed as a 
priority to ensure the Duty to Report process is clear, to prevent any referrals being missed or delayed.  
Actions: A regularly updated list of DSL/DSO’s needs to be accessible with each service areas shared spaces including electronic 
and physical locations.  
The DSL/DSO needs to be displayed in spaces where the public attend and have sight.  
 
Safeguarding Champions role – All areas were aware of the Safeguarding Champions, with some commenting on usefulness 
of cascaded information. Within some areas, the Champions role was confused with the DSL/DSO role. However, other areas 
were very keen to increase the number of Champions per area to ensure Safeguarding remained a priority within team meetings.  
Actions: Relaunch Champion role with clear comparison between the DSL/DSO role made and recruit active, motivated 
participants.  
 
Volunteers – Areas were able to identify if they work with volunteers and in which sectors of their service area. All were unable to 
confirm if a register is kept and how this is monitored across the service.  

T
udalen 51



28 
 

Actions: Link in with People and Business Change to promote their work on the new centrally held Volunteers Register and 
remind all it is part of a commitment to safeguarding by following the associated policy and procedures.  
 
Professional Concern referrals – No area holds data on how many referrals are made from that service area, in relation to 
concerns about professionals who work with children or adults at risk. This links in with lack of clarity across the council of who 
the DSL/DSOs are.  
Actions: Corporate Safeguarding to work with WCCIS team to collate that data and share with service areas annually. This will 
evidence that the policies in place are effective and employee’s are following the duty to report process.  
 
Audits – Adult Services and Children and Young People Services were the only teams who could identify audits where 
safeguarding had been a focus.   
Actions: Work with Safeguarding Champions to identify areas within audits where safeguarding can be focussed on to ensure 
practices and procedures are regularly assessed for their robustness in terms of Safeguarding.  
 
Standard 2 Environment (Safe)- How safe does your service area feel to citizens that access your services, and to your 
staff working in your service area? 
Strengths  
Service areas are confident that citizens and staff feel safe and informed when at sites and accessing services. Security 
measures are complied with in terms of those on premises as well as risk assessments. Staff who work directly with the public 
have additional and specific safeguarding training suitable to their role. Services areas were able to provide examples of how 
they have managed any concerns received by other citizens or professionals. Service areas were reflective of procedures in 
relation to contractors attending properties and identified areas of improvement.  
 
Actions  
Citizens awareness of safeguarding – Although areas can example that safeguarding concerns are raised by staff and citizens, 
without clarity on DSL/DSO within service areas, the robustness of these procedures need to be improved.  
Actions: DSL/DSO’s identified and widely communicated, with timely reviews as a priority. The quality of public displays of across 
sites and online sources needs scrutiny to ensure best practice is established. 
 
Other premises risk assessments – Service areas where staff visit other premises utilise logging and communication 
processes. However, the pandemic changed some practices with physical logbooks to digital or phone calls made post visit, 
ensuring new agreed practice is in place.  

T
udalen 52



29 
 

Actions: Champions to highlight the need for these new practices to be reviewed in a timely manner as the working practices 
continue to evolve due to blended working.  
 
Standard 3 Culture (Effective) - How Effective is your service area approach to safeguarding? 
Strengths 
All areas stated that their strategic planning takes into account the need to safeguard citizens and to promote their welfare. Some 
were able to reflect on what has gone well and areas for improvement. Most areas were able to demonstrate that new learning is 
embedded into practice and planning in relation to consent to share and safeguarding children and adults at risk. Gaps in service 
area approach to safeguarding were mainly identified, showing willingness to accept change will be required to improve and 
uphold safeguarding standards.  
 
Actions  
Training – All areas again commented on the need for better monitoring of training and will undertake snap audits to test the 
effectiveness.  
Actions: Utilise Champions to provide prompts for regular training and testing of safeguarding understanding.  
 
Commissioned services – Some areas stated that they have dispensed with services due to standards issues but this is not 
captured/recorded regularly. Consideration to link in with LADO if appropriate.  
Actions: Further discussion and quality checks required with Service Areas to ascertain if a comparison tool for those assessing a 
commissioned service safeguarding practices is in line with Newport City Council’s.   

 
 

7 Future Work, Areas of stress/ risk, and Recommendations  
 

7.1 The impact of Covid-19 pandemic this has resulted in further delays in actions from the previous year’s work plan targets either 
being met or commenced for some work streams.  The outstanding work has therefore been rolled over into this year’s work 
plan (2022- 2023) and new target dates have been set. Members are respectfully asked to remember that given the ever-
changing climate that we remain in that the service will always need to remain adaptable and reflexive, and the proposals stated 
will need to have a degree of flexibility to their completion.  

 
7.2 The Safeguarding Unit, collaboratively with the Social Services Training Department and People and Business Change 

Department, will continue to progress on the secondary phase of “skill-scanning” of all job descriptions within the council 

T
udalen 53



30 
 

(including volunteers) to ensure that every post is reviewed to ensure that the correct level of safeguarding training and checks 
required for that role is “assigned” and then can be reviewed by the responsible line manager at the correct intervals.  This work 
is identified on the Work Plan (2022/ 2023). 

 
7.3 As highlighted to Members, there is an area of risk to the Council in relation to poor performance for mandatory training where 

fines/ regulatory action may be taken regarding safeguarding training.  Although there have been mitigating factors affecting 
performance (including the pandemic; access issues for specific service areas) which have been acknowledged by both the 
Senior Children/ Adult Management Team and Welsh Government to prevent action being taken currently, this on-going low 
performance and non-compliance requires to be formally addressed.  It is therefore a strong recommendation to Members that 
Cabinet continues to endorse the work plan action at 1. for People and Business Change to adopt new ways of working into 
their priority planning for current employees in completing mandatory Safeguarding training in order to improve compliance 
rates; meet the objectives of the Council’s commitment to ensuring “Safeguarding Involves Us All”; and in ensuring fines or 
regulatory action are not taken by governing bodies against Newport City Council. 

 
7.4 Safeguarding Champions. We will refresh this role and look at a role profile for the champions to ensure that they are clear 

about this position. We plan to reinstate the regular meetings with the champions and look at how they are integral to the 
corporate Safeguarding plan for information exchange.  

 
7.5 Audit cycle for children services. We are going to implement a case audit cycle in Children’s Services from 1st September and 

have devised a process for all mangers, Team Manager and above to audit a case bi monthly. This will be managed by the 
Quality Assurance team. From this we will gain oversight into case themes and subsequent strengths as well as improvements.  

 
 

8 Corporate Safeguarding Work Plan (2022/ 2023) 
 

What outcomes do we want 
to achieve? (objectives to 
achieve) 

How will we make this 
happen? 

When will we achieve this? How will we know it’s making a 
difference? (performance measures) 

RAG status 

1. Mandatory safeguarding 
training compliance to be 
corporately addressed by 
People and Business Change 

People and Business Change 
to ensure that Mandatory 
Safeguarding Training is 

Proposed for PBC to 
progress as a matter of 
urgency 

Compliancy rates for mandatory 
safeguarding training will improve 
across all service areas and the 

AMBER 
 
Processes in 
place for new 

T
udalen 54



31 
 

urgently via new ways of 
working for current 
employees (via I-Trent 
tracking and employee check 
ins and if necessary, capability 
procedures for non 
completion) in order to avoid 
fines/ regulatory action for 
continued non-compliance. 

addressed as part of their 
priority planning for 2022/2023. 
 
Current Employees- via I-Trent/ 
employee check-ins.   

council will not receive fines or 
regulatory action. 
 
The council will be able to easily track 
compliance with mandatory training 
and address with service areas where 
there are issues with low up take and 
identify if barriers exist and address 
these swiftly. 
 
Completion of mandatory safeguarding 
training for all employees will result in a 
work force that is aware of its duties 
and responsibilities. 

starters and 
volunteers. 
Current 
employees 
have access to 
all the training 
and 
Safeguarding 
Champions 
and campaigns 
promote these.  
 
F2F sessions 
are being 
schedule to 
capture those 
without IT 
access.  

2. Develop a tiered 
safeguarding training 
framework for all roles across 
the organisation (including 
volunteers) to be clear on the 
level of safeguarding training 
and safeguarding check they 
must have in order to 
undertake their role 

Early stages of the project with 
Social Services training 
department, identifying roles 
within services areas.  
Collaboration with POD is being 
arranged to develop this 
project. 
 

Arrange further project 
meeting with Safeguarding 
Unit; Training Department 
and PBC- lead officers  

There will be a clear safeguarding 
training framework which staff/ 
managers from all council service 
areas can access to identify what level 
of safeguarding training is required for 
their employment role (including 
volunteers) to ensure compliancy in 
terms of safeguarding training. 
 
This tiered training framework could 
also be developed as a future project 
to be linked to the clear review and 
personal development plans of 
employees. 

AMBER due to 
roll over from 
previous work 
plan task 
(20/21) 

T
udalen 55



32 
 

5. Improve how “safeguarding” 
information is communicated 
externally to the citizens of 
Newport in order to ensure 
that our citizens know who to 
contact if they need 
information, advice or 
assistance and to promote the 
Council’s commitment to 
safeguarding by 
communicating essential 
information and highlighting 
where changes have or will be 
made (ie. legislation/ policy/ 
council procedures). 
 
 

Review the current Newport.gov 
webpages to ensure that the 
information is up to date/ useful/ 
engaging 

1) Content ratification of 
content by CSMT by August 
2022 
 
2) Dissemination strategy to 
be agreed with Comms & 
Marketing department upon 
agreement of information 
content  
IT web page content 
development and launch by 
November 2022) 

Citizens of Newport report that they 
can access information, advice and 
assistance and feel that the information 
is communicated to them clearly. 

AMBER due to 
roll over from 
previous work 
plan task 
(20/21) 
 
Proposed 
development 
pages being 
finalised 
 
Communicating 
Information to 
Citizens about 
the Children-
Abolition of 
Defence of 
Reasonable 
Punishment 
Law was 
prompted by 
the council 
social media 
channels  

6. Self assessment tool – 
regional work  

Ongoing meetings with Gwent 
counterparts. Managed by 
Safeguarding Service 
Managers with help from the 
Safeguarding Board Business 
Unit  

Spring 2023 for the new 
reporting cycle   

More robust self assessment will 
mitigate N/A answers as well as allow 
for benchmarking against WAO 
recommendations and regionally 
agreed performance indicators.  

 

7. Audit Cycles Process is devised and ready to 
implement 

Sept 2022 Case themes, strengths and 
improvements 

 

T
udalen 56



33 
 

 

 
9 Resource implications (employment and financial) 

There are no resource implications currently other than corporate Safeguarding being a part of everyone’s role. This is being managed 
without a budget.  
 

 
 

 

 

  

T
udalen 57



34 
 

 

Appendix 1 – Glossary of terms 

 

Acronym Term 

ABUHB Aneurin Bevan University Health Board 

CSMT Children Services Management Team 

DoL Deprivation of Liberty  

DSL/O Designated Safeguarding Lead / Officer 

DTR Duty to refer 

F2F Face to face  

FGM  Female Genital Mutilation  

FM Forced Marriage  

GDPR General Data Protection Regulations 

HBA Honour Based Abuse 

LAC / CLA Looked After Child / Child Looked After  

LADO Local Authority Designated Officer  

LPS Liberty Protection Safeguards  

MARAC  Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conferences  

T
udalen 58



35 
 

NCC Newport City Council  

PBC People and Business Change  

PPN  Police Protection Notification 

PSM Professional Strategy Meeting 

SG  Safeguarding  

SPOC Single points of contact 

VAWDASV Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence  

WCCIS  Welsh Community Care Information System  

 

 

Appendix 2 – Welsh Government Corporate Safeguarding Good Practice Guidance  

WG Corp 
Safeguarding Policy Guidance.pdf 

T
udalen 59



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn



Scrutiny Report 
Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  September 2022 
 
Subject Scrutiny Adviser Report 
 
Author  Scrutiny Adviser 
 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Role 
 

Samantha Schanzer (Scrutiny 
Adviser) 

Present the Committee with the Scrutiny Adviser Report for 
discussion and update the Committee on any changes. 

 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 
 

 
 
2 Context 
 

Background  
 

2.1 Attached at Appendix 1 is the Action Sheet from the Committee meetings.  The updated 
completed actions are included in the table.   

Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked to:

1. Action Plan
Consider the Actions from previous meetings (Appendix 1):

• Note the responses for the actions;
• Determine if any further information / action is required;
• Agree to receive an update on outstanding issues at the next meeting.

2. Committee’s Work Programme:
Consider the Committee’s Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 2):

• Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the next 
Committee meeting?

• Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider the topics?
• Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?

Tudalen 61

Eitem Agenda 7



 
2.2 Any actions that do not have a response will be included on the Action Sheet at the next meeting 

to ensure that the Committee can keep track of outstanding actions.  
 
2.3  The purpose of a Forward Work Programme is to help ensure Councillors achieve organisation 

and focus in the undertaking of enquiries through the Overview and Scrutiny function.  Effective 
work programming is essential to ensure that the work of Overview and Scrutiny makes a positive 
impact upon the Council’s delivery of services. 

 
2.4 Further information about the work programming process, including the procedures for referring 

new business to the programme, can be found in our Scrutiny Handbook on the Council’s 
Scrutiny webpages (www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny). 

 
2.5 The Centre for Public Scrutiny’s Good Scrutiny Guide recognises the importance of the forward 

work programme.  In order to ‘lead and own the process’, it states that Councillors should have 
ownership of their Committee’s work programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and 
evaluating it.  The Good Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny 
workload should be co-ordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it 
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken in a timely 
and well-planned manner. 

   
 Forward Work Programme Update 
2.6 The Committee’s draft work programme was set in August 2022, including estimated timescales 

for when the reports will be considered by the Committee. This programme is then managed and 
implemented by the designated Scrutiny Adviser for this Committee under the direction of the 
Committee Chairperson.  
 

2.7 Attached as Appendix 2 is the Committee’s Forward Work Programme Update.  The Committee 
is asked to consider:  
• Any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the next Committee meeting? 
• Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider the topics? 
• Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request? 

 
 
 
3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 The following information is attached: 
 
 Appendix 1: Action Sheet from Previous Meetings; 
   
 Appendix 2: Draft Forward Work Programme 
 
4. Suggested Areas of Focus 
 
 Role of the Committee 
  

Tudalen 62

http://www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny


 
 
 
Section B – Supporting Information 
5 Supporting Information 
 
5.1 The Corporate Assessment, and the subsequent follow up assessment provide background 

information on the importance of good work programming. Specific reference is made to the need 
to align the Cabinet and Scrutiny work programmes to ensure the value of the Scrutiny Function 
is maximised. 

 
5.2 The latest Cabinet work programme was approved by the Cabinet on a monthly basis for the next 

12 months and includes the list of reports scheduled for consideration.  Effective forward planning 
by both Cabinet and Scrutiny needs to be coordinated and integrated in relation to certain reports 
to ensure proper consultation takes place before a decision is taken.  A link to the Cabinet work 
programme is provided here to the Committee as part of this report, to enable the Committee to 
ensure that the work programmes continue to reflect key decisions being made by the Cabinet.   

6. Links to Council Policies and Priorities  
 
  6.1 Having proper work programming procedures in place ensures that the work of Overview and 

Scrutiny makes a positive impact upon the Council’s delivery of services, contributes to the delivery 
of corporate objectives, and ensures that work can be undertaken in a timely and well-planned 
manner.   

 
6.2    This report relates to the Committee’s Work Programme, Actions from Committee’s and  

Information Reports that support the achievement of the Scrutiny Committee, in accordance with  
the Law and Regulation Service Plan, Objectives, Actions and Measures and the Wellbeing 
objectives:  
 

 
Well-being 
Objectives  
 

Promote economic 
growth and 
regeneration whilst 
protecting the 
environment  
 

Improve skills, 
educational 
outcomes & 
employment 
opportunities  
 

Enable 
people to be 
healthy, 
independent 
& resilient  
 

Build 
cohesive & 
sustainable 
communities  
 

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:

• Action Sheet from Previous Meetings - Appendix 1
o Consider the responses to the actions from the meeting;
o Are you satisfied that you have received the necessary information?
o Are there any further issues arising from the responses that you would like to 

raise?
o For the actions that do not have responses – these actions will be rolled over 

to the next meeting and reported back to the Committee. 
• Draft Forward Work Programme - Appendix 2

Consider:
o Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the 

next Committee meeting?
o Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider 

the topics?
o Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?

•

Tudalen 63

https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s6711/06%20Corporate%20Aassessment%20appendix.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s21700/2022-23%20CABINET%20WORK%20PROGRAMME.pdf?LLL=0


Corporate Plan 
Commitments 

Thriving City  Aspirational People Resilient 
Communities 

Supporting 
Function 

Modernised Council 

 
 
7 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act  
 
7.1 The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 which came into force in April 2016 sets the 

context for the move towards long term planning of services.   
 

7.2 General questions 
• How is this area / policy affected by the new legislation?   
• How will this decision / policy / proposal impact upon future generations?  What is the long 

term impact?   
• What evidence is provided to demonstrate WFGA has been / is being considered?   
• Evidence from Community Profiles / other data?  
• Evidence of links to Wellbeing Assessment / Objectives / Plan? 

 
7.3 Wellbeing Goals 

• How are the Wellbeing goals reflected in the policy / proposal / action? 
o A prosperous Wales 
o A resilient Wales 
o A healthier Wales 
o A more equal Wales 
o A Wales of cohesive communities 
o A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
o A globally responsible Wales 

 
7.4 Sustainable Development Principles 

• Does the report / proposal demonstrate how as an authority we are working in accordance 
with the sustainable development principles from the act when planning services? 
o Long Term 

The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability to 
also meet long-term needs 

o Prevention 
How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may help public bodies meet 
their objectives 

o Integration 
Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may impact upon each of the 
well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies 

o Collaboration 
Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts of the body itself) that 
could help the body to meet its well-being objectives 

o Involvement 
The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals, 
and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the body serves. 

 
8 Background Papers 
 

• The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)  
• Corporate Plan 2017 - 2022 
• The Corporate Assessment and follow up assessment.  

 

Tudalen 64

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Corporate-Plan-2017-2022.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s6711/06%20Corporate%20Aassessment%20appendix.pdf


 
Report Completed: September 2022 

Tudalen 65



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn



  

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
ACTION SHEET – 23.09.22 

 

 Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

1 Conclusion of 
Committee reports 

 

 

Send comments and 
recommendations to 
officers 

Samantha 
Schanzer 

Will be completed on 
26.09.22 

2 Scrutiny Advisor 
Report 

Send committee information 
regarding previous 
committee meeting 
schedules 

Samantha 
Schanzer 

COMPLETE – 23.09.22 

3 Strategic Equalities 
Plan Annual Report 
21-22  

 

Confirm whether previous 
committee 
recommendations regarding 
the membership of the 
fortnightly group that meets 
with Gwent Police was 
taken forward.  

Janice 
Dent/Samantha 

Schanzer 

 

 

4 Strategic Equalities 
Plan Annual Report 
21-22  

 

 

Provide committee with a 
copy of the exit survey 
given for comments and 
recommendations.  

Janice 
Dent/Samantha 

Schanzer 

 

5 Strategic Equalities 
Plan Annual Report 
21-22 

 

 

 

Provide an answer 
regarding the expanding the 
network of Councils. 

Janice 
Dent/Samantha 

Schanzer 

 

6 Strategic Equalities 
Plan Annual Report 
21-22 

 

 

 

Confirm whether 
information given was a 
typo or provide an 
explanation to committee 
regarding the information. 

Janice 
Dent/Samantha 

Schanzer 

 

Tudalen 67



  

 
 

7 Climate Change 
Annual Report 

 

 

Provide committee 
information regarding the 
number of electric vehicle 
chargers available to 
residents both publicly and 
privately owned.  

Ross 
Cudlipp/Samant

ha Schanzer 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 68



Scrutiny 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee  
Draft Work Programme: June 2022 to May 2023 
Meeting 
 

Agenda Items 

 
24/06/2022 

 
▪ Welsh Language Annual Report 

 
29/07/2022 

 
▪ Annual Digital Report 
▪ Digital Strategy 

 

 
09/09/2022 

 
POSTPONED 

 
 
 

 
23/09/22 

 
▪ Strategic Equalities Plan Annual Report – To consider: 

o Whether the Annual Report reflects a true and fair account of the 
council’s progress towards achieving the objectives defined in 
the Strategic Equality Plan 2020-24 for the period in question – 
2021 – 2022. 

o Whether the Annual Report highlights the ongoing commitment 
to Equalities effectively and focuses on appropriate successes 
and highlights successes and good work 

o Whether the Annual Report highlights the ongoing commitment 
to equalities effectively and focuses on appropriate areas for 
development 

o Whether it wishes to provide comment and recommendations on 
the Annual Report to Cabinet. 

 
▪ Climate Change Plan Report 2022-27  –  

o To consider whether information submitted is adequate in 
providing understanding of the work being undertaken and 
progress being made.  

 
o To consider whether an annual reporting cycle is adequate to 

monitor performance relating to the work being undertaken and 
progress made.  

 
o To provide comment and recommendations on the Climate 

Change Plan Annual Report. 

Tudalen 69



 
▪ Annual Information Risk Report 2021-22 – To: 

o Provide an assessment of the Council’s information governance 
arrangements, identify key risks and agree the action plan. 

 
o Highlight the importance of information governance to the 

organisation, the risks faced and the current level of risk. 
 
 

 
30/09/22 

 
▪ Corporate Plan Draft Wellbeing Themes – To:  

o Consider the Draft Well-being Objectives and strategic priorities 
of the Council to support the Well-being of Future Generations 
seven Well-being Goals. 

o Provide comment and recommendations on the draft Corporate 
Plan themes which will form the Corporate Plan for 2022-27.  

 
▪ Annual Corporate Safeguarding 2021-22 – To:  

o Consider how the Council is carrying out its corporate 
safeguarding responsibilities and make comment or 
recommendations to Cabinet. 
 

 
21/10/2022 

 
▪ Annual Compliments, Comments and Complaints Report 2021-22 – 

TBA. 
 
▪ Annual Corporate Wellbeing Self-Assessment Report (new LGEA 

requirement) – TBA. 
 

02/12/2022  
▪ Planning and Performance Risk Management Framework – TBA. 

 
03/02/2023 
 

 
▪ 2023/24 Revenue Budget and MTFP – To: 

o Receive the comments and recommendations made by the other 
Scrutiny Committees and question the Officers on any issues 
with Budget Process and Public Engagement.  

o Make recommendations to the Cabinet relating to the Budget 
Process and Public Engagement 

o Confirm the final list of comments to be forwarded to the Cabinet 
for information. 

 
 

 
03/03/2023 

 
▪ TBD 

 
28/04/2023 

 
▪ TBD 

 

Tudalen 70



 

Tudalen 71



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn


	Agenda
	4 Themâu Llesiant Cynllun Corfforaethol Drafft 2022-27
	Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Subject	Draft Corporate Plan 2022-27 Well-being Objectives and Priorities

	Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
	2	Context
	3	Information Submitted to the Committee
	4.	Suggested Areas of Focus
	5	Well-being of Future Generation (Wales) Act ‘Sustainability Development Principles’
	6.	Impact Assessment
	7.	Background Papers

	Item 4 - Draft Corporate Plan Themes

	5 Adroddiad Blynyddol Diogelu Corfforaethol 2021-22
	Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Subject	Annual Corporate Safeguarding 2020/21

	Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
	2	Context
	3	Information Submitted to the Committee
	4.	Suggested Areas of Focus
	5	Links to Council Policies and Priorities
	6	Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act
	7.	Background Papers

	Corporate Safeguarding Annual Report 21-22
	Scrutiny
	Subject	Corporate Safeguarding Annual Report



	7 Adroddiad Cynghorydd Craffu
	Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Subject	Scrutiny Adviser Report

	Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
	3	Information Submitted to the Committee
	5	Supporting Information
	6.	Links to Council Policies and Priorities
	7	Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act
	8	Background Papers

	Actions Arising
	Rhaglen waith


